
January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 1 

STUDY SESSION 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: January 5, 2012 
 Time: 6:00 PM 

 Posted:12/29/11  

1. CALL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER – Mayor 
a. Draft Annual Budget Audit for 2010-11 ................................................... 6:00 pm 
b. Wastewater Treatment Plant Update on Change Order number 

fourteen.   ................................................................................................ 6:30 pm                                                  
2. ADJOURN STUDY SESSION 

 
AMMENDED 12/30/2001 8:30 A.M. 

AGENDA 
CITY OF FERNDALE – HUMBOLDT COUNTY CALIFORNIA – U.S.A. 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: January  5, 2012 

 Time: 7 pm 
 Posted:12/29/11  

 
We welcome you to the meeting. Members of the Public may be heard on any business item on this Agenda before or 

during the City Council consideration of the item. The public may also directly address the City Council on any item of interest 
to the public that is not on the Agenda during the public comment time; however, the City Council generally cannot take action 
on an item not on the agenda. 

A person addressing the City Council will be limited to five (5) minutes unless the Mayor of the City Council grants a 
longer period of time. While not required, we would appreciate it if you would identify yourself with your name and address 
when addressing the Council. 

This City endeavors to be ADA compliant. Should you require assistance with written information or access to the 
facility, or a hearing amplification, please call 786-4224 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

TO SPEAK ON ANY ISSUE, BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE MAYOR BEFORE PROCEEDING TO THE PODIUM, STATE YOUR 
NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD (optional), AND DIRECT YOUR COMMENTS ONLY TO THE COUNCIL. 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – Mayor 
2. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
3. ROLL CALL – Deputy City Clerk 
4. CEREMONIAL:   
5. MODIFICATIONS TO THE AGENDA 
6. STUDY SESSIONS   
7. PUBLIC COMMENT. (This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on 

any matter not on this agenda and over which the Council has jurisdiction. Items 
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next 
regular agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of 
the Council that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an 
urgent nature requiring immediate action. This portion of the meeting will be 
approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each speaker given no 
more than five minutes.) ..............................................................................................  Page  4 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR. (All matters listed under this category are considered to 
be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. Unless a 
specific request is made by a Councilmember, staff or the public, the Consent 
Calendar will not be read. There will be no separate discussion of these items. 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 2 

However, if discussion is required, that item will be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and considered separately under “Call Items.”) 

a. Acceptance of Accounts Payable......................................................................  Page 5 
b. Approval of previous minutes:  

i. December 1, 2011 ...............................................................................  Page 17 
9. CALL ITEMS 
10. PRESENTATION / Community Forum 

a. Schatz Energy Research Center ........................................................................  Page 20  
b. ShellWind Energy .............................................................................................  Page 24  

11. BUSINESS 
a. Wind Turbine:  

i. City Staff’s Recommendation ..............................................................  Page 31 
ii. Coalition Against Wind Turbine Components using Ferndale City 

Streets  ................................................................................................  Page 37 
iii. Opposition to the Wind Turbine Project .............................................  Page 55 

b. Review Housing Element ..................................................................................  Page 74 
c. Second Reading of Ordinance 2012-01 Zoning Ordinance Amendment 

for Housing Overlay..........................................................................................  Page 76 
d. Resolution 2012-03 WWTP Pay Request #17 ...................................................  Page 81 
e. Resolution 2012-01 Increase in cost of Health Insurance ................................  Page 86 
f. Resolution 2012-04 Annual Events and Parades Street Closures  ....................  Page 88 
g. Resolution 2012-05 Sousa Agreement to Accept Water ..................................  Page 91 
h. Approve Annual Budget Audit for 2010-11 ......................................................  Page 98 
i. Resolution 2012-02: Recognizing a $14, 415.00 grant from a local non-

profit organization for upgrades and renovation to the Ferndale Police 
Department. .....................................................................................................  Page 99 

j. Request for Proposal for City Attorney ............................................................  Page 101 
k. Resolution 2012-06 Establishing the City Council meeting schedule from 

February 2012 through January 2013 ..............................................................  Page 102 
12. CORRESPONDENCE  ......................................................................................................  Page 104 
13. REPORTS 

a. City Manager Staff Report and Community Events ..........................................  Page 108 
b. Commissions / Committees and others 

i. Design Review .....................................................................................  Page 119 
ii. Sign Committee ...................................................................................  Page 120 

 
c. Council Reports and Comments .......................................................................  Page 121 

i. HWMA Abstract 
14. ADJOURN ......................................................................................................................  Page 121 

This notice is posted in compliance with Government Code §54954.2. 
The next Regular Meeting of the Ferndale City Council will be held on 
THURSDAY, January 5, 2011 in the Auditorium of City Hall at 7:00pm 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 3 

Section 1 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Section 2 
Pledge Allegiance 

 
Section 3 
Roll Call 

 
Section 4 

Ceremonial 
 

 

 

 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 4 

 

Section 5 

Modifications to the Agenda 
 

Section 6 
Study Sessions 

 

Section 7 

Public Comment 
 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and 
over which the Council has jurisdiction. 
 
Items requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next regular 
agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rd of the Council (three of the 
five members) that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgent nature 
requiring immediate action. 
 
This portion of the meeting will be approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each 
speaker given no more than five minutes. Please state your name and address for the record. 
(This is optional.) 

 

Section 8 

Consent Agenda 
 
All matters listed under this category are considered to be routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion.  
 
Is there anyone on the Council, Staff or the public that would like to pull an item off the 
Consent Agenda for scrutiny? Those items will be considered separately under “Call Items.” 
  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 5 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 6 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 7 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 8 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 9 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 10 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 11 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 12 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 13 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 14 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 15 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 16 

 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 17 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
City Council Minutes for December 1, 2011 at 7:00 pm.  Page 17 

 
Vice Mayor Stuart Titus called the Regular City Council Meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. Present were 
Councilmen Niels Lourenzen, Ken Mierzwa, and John Maxwell, along with staff Police Chief Bret Smith,  
Deputy City Clerk Brianna Smith, Financial Manager Debbie Austrus,  City Engineer Praj White, Project 
Manager Kent Hanford and City Planner George Williamson. Mayor Farley arrived at 7:08 due to an 
HCOG meeting. Those present pledged allegiance to the flag. 
 
Modifications to the agenda:  Move item 11i. TTS Monitoring Station before item 11a. Wind Turbine and 
move item 11e. Public Hearing: Initial Study and Negative Declaration for the Ferndale Housing Element, 
Historical and Cultural Resources Element and General Plan/Zoning Amendments before 11c. Public 
Hearing: Draft Historical and Cultural Element. 
 
Consent Calendar: MOTION: Accept Accounts Payable, Approve the minutes for November 3, 2011. 
(Mierzwa/Maxwell) Unanimous. 
 
TTS Monitoring Station :  Tom Stephens gave an update on the TTS monitoring station. MOTION: 
Approve contribution of $2000.00 for the continuation of the TTS monitoring station on Francis Creek at 
Van Ness. (Titus/Mierzwa). Unanimous.   
 
Wind Turbine:  Chief Smith gave an update. Members of the public Dick Hooley, Gordon Green, Marlin 
Mesman, Dan Tubbs, Jack McDonald, Nancy Trujillio, Willis Hadley, Bob Christie, Kathleen Klatt, Jerebob 
Bowden, and Andrei Hedstom spoke about their concern regarding the Wind Turbine Project and 
transportation through the City. They spoke about the negative effects that this project would have on 
the town. They also explained to the Council that they would like them to take a stance on this matter 
and send word to the County Planning Commission that the City Council is against the Shell Wind 
Project. Many members of the public urged Council to make a decision on this matter now instead of 
waiting until the spring. John Miller from the Humboldt County Planning Commission also gave a brief 
update on the Wind Turbine Project. He explained the only information available right now is the 
preliminary information; he has asked Shell for more information, but has not yet received it. In April 
more information will be available. Dick Hooley asked that this item be split into two separate action 
items; one being transportation and the other the opposition of the project entirely. MOTION: Bring 
back on the next agenda as separate action items. (Lourenzen/Titus). Unanimous. 
 
Break from 9:15-9:23 
 
Public Hearing-Draft Housing Element: City Planner George Williamson gave an update. Council pointed 
out that on page 2-11 of the Draft Housing Element under Overcrowded Households that the numbers 
don’t correlate. This item will be brought back on January’s agenda for Council’s approval and then will 
be submitted to the State. 
 
Public Hearing-Initial Study and Negative Declaration for the Ferndale Housing Element, Historical and 
Cultural Resources Element and General Plan/Zoning Amendments: City Planner George Williamson 
gave an update. MOTION: Adopt Resolution 2011-45 for the Housing Element, Historical and Cultural 
Resources Element, and General Plan/Zoning Amendments Negative Declaration (SCH#2011112001). 
(Maxwell/Titus). Unanimous. 
 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 18 

Public Hearing-Draft Historical and Cultural Resources:  City Planner George Williamson gave an update. 
MOTION: Adopt the Historical and Cultural Resources Element and approve additional work to include a 
photograph representation from Ferndale of each architectural style described in Chapter 3, as 
recommended by Planning Commission. (Maxwell/Mierzwa). Unanimous. The additional work is snot to 
exceed $825 and will be completed within 30 days of approval. 
 
Public Hearing- Residential Two-Family (R2) Density General Plan and Zoning Amendment and Ferndale 
Housing Combining Zone Overlay Zoning Amendment: City Planner George Williamson gave an update.  
MOTION: Approve Resolution 2011-44 General Plan/ Zoning Amendments for Residential Two-Family 
(R2) Density and Ferndale Housing Combining Zone. (Farley/Titus). Unanimous. 
 
Resolution 2011-46 16th Pay Request for Management and Construction Related Costs for the WWTP: 
Project Manger Kent Hanford gave an update. MOTION: Approve Resolution 2011-46 16th Pay Request 
for Management and Construction Related Costs for the WWTP. (Titus/Maxwell). Unanimous. 
 
Change Order # 13: A study session was held from 6:30-7:00pm. Project Manager Kent Hanford gave an 
update. MOTION: Approve WWTP Change Order # 13. (Titus/Mierzwa).  4 ayes and 1 nay from 
Councilman Lorenzen. 
 
Change the Design Review Zoning Ordinance from 3 votes to a majority vote(2nd Reading): MOTION: 
Approve the Design Review Zoning Ordinance Change from 3 votes to a majority vote. (Titus/Mierzwa). 
Unanimous. 
 
Letter of support to CUPC regarding the Scotia Power Plant: MOTION: Authorize Mayor to sign letter of 
support for Scotia Power Plant to the CUPC. (Maxwell/Titus). 4 ayes. 1 nay by Councilman Lorenzen. 
 
Reports: City Engineer Praj White gave an update on the Pedestrian Improvement Project. 
 
The next regular meeting will be January 5, 2011. The meeting adjourned at 10:09pm 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Brianna Smith 
Deputy City Clerk 
  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 19 

 

 
 

 
 

Section 9 

 
CALL ITEMS 

 
These are items pulled from the consent agenda  

for discussion and a separate motion. 
 

Section 10 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 

a. Shatz Energy Research Center 

b. ShellWind Energy 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 20 

Meeting Date: January 5, 2011 Agenda Item Number 10a 

Agenda Item Title: Shatz Energy Research Center Presentation 

 

 
 

Wind Power 

Q - Is wind energy economically viable without government subsidy?  

A – Yes, though the economics of specific projects vary with the quality of the wind resource and 

other project specifics. 

 The lifecycle cost of energy is roughly equivalent between wind and fossil fuels: 
 
Figure 1 shows the “levelized cost of energy” (LCOE) - or the lifecycle cost to produce one MWh of 
electricity - for a range of technologies.  In Humboldt County, wind power is the same or less costly than 
producing power from natural gas (Figure 2).   
 
Studies have shown that the there are additional costs associated with integrating wind power into the 
electricity grid.  Including these extra costs would increase the onshore wind values in the following 
figures by $1-15/MWh or 0.2-24% of the mean value in Figure 1 (Wiser, 2011). 

 
Figure 1: Levelized cost of energy for various technologies (NREL, 2011) 

 

61 

 

LCOE by Data Set and Technology, 2015

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Coal IGCC Combustion

Turbine

Combined

Cycle

Nuclear Biomass Geothermal

(HT)

Wind

(onshore)

Wind

(offshore)

Solar

Thermal

(CSP)

PV

Technology

L
C

O
E

 (
2

0
0

7
$

 /
 M

W
h

)

AEO 2009

GPRA 2009

NREL-SEAC 2008

MiniCAM 2008

EPA 2009

MERGE 2009

Mean = 53 

SD = 9.6 

CV = 18%

Mean = 62 

SD = 11.4 

CV = 18%

Mean = 77 

SD = 28.9 

CV = 38% Mean = 52 

SD = 3.6 

CV = 7%

Mean = 69 

SD = 21.3 

CV = 31%

Mean = 75 

SD = 13.5 

CV = 18%

Mean = 83 

SD = 41.6 

CV = 50%

Mean = 63 

SD = 29.5 

CV = 47%

Mean = 101 

SD = 31.2 

CV = 31%

Mean = 181 

SD = 80.6 

CV = 45%

Mean = 270 

SD = 137.5 

CV = 51%

 

Figure 37. LCOE costs, 2015 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 21 

 

 

Figure 2: Levelized cost of energy estimates for Humboldt County and literature values (Hackett, 2011). 

 The wind industry has enjoyed a substantial boost from government subsidies.  The federal 
Production Tax Credit has enhanced revenue from wind projects by roughly $20/MWh, which 
has dramatically accelerated investment in wind.  However, the tax credit is set to expire at the 
end of 2012.  Therefore this tax incentive cannot be relied upon to make the ShellWind project 
on Bear River Ridge economically viable. 
 

 In addition, subsidies are not unique to wind power (Sovacool, 2009): 
 
“Looking closely at the numbers, conventional sources have received almost 90 percent of all 
subsidies for the past six decades. From 1947 to 1999, for instance, federal subsidies for nuclear 
power totaled $145.4 billion, more than 25 times the cumulative spending on wind and solar 
over the same period. In 1973, before the energy crisis, the federal government awarded 93 
percent of its subsidies to fossil energy but only 6 percent to energy efficiency and renewables. 
Between 1978 and 1995, federal subsidies for clean coal exceeded $12 billion, nearly two-and-a-
half times the total funding for wind. Even in fiscal year 1979, when subsidies for renewable 
power peaked at $1.5 billion, subsidies for fossil fuels were greater at $1.9 billion and more than 
58 percent of the DOE R&D budget was focused on nuclear power. “ 
 

 The lifecycle costs presented above do not reflect environmental and health related 
externalities.  According to Sovacool (2009), the negative externalities associated with fossil fuel 
electricity would increase the cost of energy by roughly $65/MWh for natural gas power and 
$190/MWh for coal (see Figure 3), whereas the negative external costs of wind power are 
estimated to be about $5/MWh. 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 22 

 

 

Figure 3: Negative external costs for conventional, nuclear, and renewable power generators in the United States in $2007 
¢/kWh (Sovacool 2009).  Note 1¢/kWh = 10 $/MWh. 

 

Q – Does wind power reduce the need for fossil powered generating plants?  

A – It depends, but it *does* decrease consumption of fossil fuels. 

Wind power is intermittent, which means that a single wind farm cannot be relied upon to provide 

energy at any specific point in time.  Fossil powered electricity is dispatchable, which means that a plant 

can increase or decrease output at will. 

However, other sources of renewable energy can be dispatchable, such as hydropower, geothermal and 

biomass.  In addition, energy storage facilities, charged during periods of excess availability, can be used 

to deliver renewable energy during periods of deficit.  So technically, fossil power generation can be 

replaced entirely by a combination of intermittent and dispatchable renewable sources. 

In order to accommodate the times when intermittent generation is not available, sufficient capacity 

from dispatchable sources must remain installed.  However, when wind power is available it has a much 

lower marginal cost because it has no fuel costs.  Because of this lower marginal cost the use of wind 

power takes precedence over the use of fossil fueled generators.  Therefore, one MWh produced by a 

wind farm does displace an equivalent amount of fossil fueled energy and it eliminates the greenhouse 

gas emissions associated with the fossil fuel. 

¢
/k

W
h
 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 23 

Note that there is a cost associated with maintaining sufficient dispatchable capacity on the grid, and 

this is included in the $1-15/MWh integration expense discussed above (Wiser, 2011).  However, in 

Humboldt County we have a newly installed natural gas power plant, and this plant will remain in 

operation regardless of whether or not local wind power is developed.  This plant, composed of natural 

gas internal combustion engines, is very flexible and ideally suited to accommodating substantial 

additions of intermittent renewables on the local electricity grid. 

Q – Do property values decrease around wind farms?  

A – The evidence is mixed but does not strongly support this claim.  

A study recently published by Hoen et. al. (2011) concluded that there was no statistically significant 

impact on property values due to wind farms: 

“This paper has investigated the potential impacts of wind energy facilities on the sales prices of 

residential properties that are in proximity to and/or that have a view of those wind facilities. In 

so doing, three different potential impacts of wind facilities on property values have been 

identified and analyzed: scenic vista stigma, area stigma, and nuisance stigma. The results are 

based on the most comprehensive data on and analysis of the subject to date. Across various 

model specifications and after a number of robustness tests were conducted, no statistical 

evidence of the presence of these stigmas was found for the 24 wind facilities and 7,459 

residential real estate transactions included in the sample.” 

A competing study (that did not go through peer review) by Heintzelman and Tuttle (2011) concluded 

that properties within one mile of wind farms in Northern New York decreased in value by 8-15%. 

Note that no residential zoned land is located within 1 mile of the proposed Bear River Ridge wind farm. 

References  

National Renewable Energy Laboratory (2011). Cost and Performance Assumptions for Modeling 

Electricity Generation Technologies. Available at: http://www.nrel.gov/doc/fy11osti/48595.pdf. 

Retrieved December 6, 2011. 

Hackett, Steve, Luke Scheidler, and Ruben Garcia Jr. (2011).  “Humboldt County as a Renewable Energy 

Secure Community: Economic Analysis Report.” California Energy Commission. 

Heintzelman, Martin D. and Carrie M. Tuttle (2011). “Values in the Wind: A Hedonic Analysis of Wind 

Power Facilities”. Available online: http://www.wind-watch.org/documents/values-in-the-wind-a-

hedonic-analysis-of-wind-power-facilities/. Retrieved December 6, 2011. 

 

Hoen, Ben, Ryan Wiser, Peter Cappers, Mark Thayer, and Gautam Sethi (2011). “Wind Energy Facilities 

and Residential Properties: The Effect of Proximity and View on Sales Prices”. Journal of Real Estate 

Research, Vol. 33, No. 3, 2011. 

http://www.wind-watch.org/documents/values-in-the-wind-a-hedonic-analysis-of-wind-power-facilities/
http://www.wind-watch.org/documents/values-in-the-wind-a-hedonic-analysis-of-wind-power-facilities/


January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 24 

Sovacool , Benjamin K. (2009). “Rejecting renewables: The socio-technical impediments to renewable 

electricity in the United States”. Energy Policy Volume 37, Issue 11, November 2009, Pages 4500-4513. 

Wiser, Ryan and Mark Bolinger (2011). “2010 Wind Technologies Market Report”. U.S. Department of 

Energy, Energy Efficiency & Renewabe Energy.  June, 2011.  Available online at: 

http://eetd.lbl.gov/ea/ems/reports/lbnl-4820e.pdf.  Retrieved December 6, 2011. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Date: January 5, 2011 Agenda Item Number 10b 

Agenda Item Title: ShellWind Energy Presentation 

http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/journal/03014215
http://www.sciencedirect.com/science?_ob=PublicationURL&_hubEid=1-s2.0-S0301421509X00108&_cid=271097&_pubType=JL&view=c&_auth=y&_acct=C000059563&_version=1&_urlVersion=0&_userid=521384&md5=f2584f666a11675c9a660a733a96a8b4
http://eetd.lbl.gov/ea/ems/reports/lbnl-4820e.pdf


January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 25 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 26 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 27 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 28 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 29 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 30 

Section 11 

BUSINESS 

 

 

 

 
  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 31 

Meeting Date: January 5, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11a 

Agenda Item Title: Wind Turbines 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
I. Re-scope the Wind Turbine project  

II. Against Wind Turbine Components using Ferndale City streets 
III. Opposition to the Wind Turbine Project in its entirety 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Listen to all concerns regarding the ShellWind Bear River Wind Turbine Project. Council can 

direct staff to prepare a letter to the County expressing one of the following alternatives:  

a. MOTION: Authorize City Manager to write a letter to the County asking them to 

reevaluate the scope of the project.  

b. MOTION: Authorize City Manager to write a letter to the County in opposition to use of 

Ferndale city streets for the transport of turbine components 

c. MOTION: Authorize City Manager to write a letter to the County in opposition to the 

Bear River Wind Turbine Project in its entirety.  

BACKGROUND TO ALTERNATIVE a:  Shell WindEnergy, Inc. (SWE) proposes to construct the 

Bear River Wind Power Project along Bear River Ridge south of Ferndale and northwest of Rio 

Dell. It will consist of up to 25 electricity-generating wind turbines with a combined generating 

capacity of up to 75 megawatts (MW). The Project will also include: 

 an onsite collector substation & offsite operation and maintenance (O&M) building,  

 an onsite interconnecting road system,  

 onsite underground collector lines and offsite overhead transmission lines, and 

 offsite upgrades to facilities owned by Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E). 
 

The project would locate wind turbines along the ridge approximately 6 miles south of 

Ferndale. The turbines and towers would need to be transported up to the ridge, possibly 

passing through the City of Ferndale.  The primary route under consideration includes access 

from Highway 101 through Bellview Avenue in Rio Dell, along Blue Slide Road, to Grizzly Bluff 

then to Ocean Avenue connecting to the Wildcat and to Mattole Road.  Construction to 

assemble the wind farm would take six to eight months once the equipment is brought on site, 

and any roads used will be restored or improved after construction, according to Shell 

representatives.  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 32 

At the December City Council meeting, petitions were presented in opposition to the project. 

Presenters cited concerns for wildlife, public health and safety, construction noise, use of large 

transport trucks, visual impact, light pollution, the effect on property values, and the potential 

for the turbines to be abandoned without proper removal.  Presenters requested that the 

Council take action to oppose use of Ferndale roads and properties. This matter was continued 

to the January Council meeting. 

DISCUSSION: After the 1970s energy crisis, the federal government enacted tax incentive 

policies for renewable energy investors.  This led to increased wind energy production, with 

many large-scale wind farm installations in California.  The early turbines caused bird mortality, 

including loss of federally protected raptor species.  These early turbines were also not very 

economical; the 10 year tax subsidies ceased, resulting in abandonment of several thousand 

wind turbines across the US.  These and other issues, including construction impacts, viewshed 

degradation, lowered property values, and noise and light pollution, spawned a growing 

opposition to wind energy.   

In response the wind industry has changed turbine designs, placement, and installation 

procedures to address impacts from earlier projects.  The newer turbine towers are taller and 

the blades turn more slowly, reducing noise generated by the older models.  Early industry 

financial data shows that the new design is producing energy at costs more competitive with 

fossil fuels.   

Studies on turbines of new design, installed in the past few years, are in progress.  Available 

studies on similar turbine designs and installations should be made part of the record for the 

public and decision makers to understand the Bear River Wind Power Project’s effects on the 

environment and the surrounding community.  The EIS/EIR being prepared for the County must 

provide an in-depth study of this specific project’s impacts.  

The County is the CEQA lead agency for this project.  ShellWind Energy submitted an 

application for a conditional use permit to construct the windfarm, which initiated the 

preparation of the EIR.  The US Fish and Wildlife Service and the California Department of Fish 

and Game will need to approve incidental take permits for impacts to endangered species and 

the California Public Utilities Commission and the California Coastal Commission will also need 

to approve permits for this project to go forward.   It is not clear at this time what permit 

approvals the City of Ferndale will have.  It appears that ShellWind Energy will be required to 

apply for an encroachment permit and may also need approval for improvements to City rights-

of-way or grading permits. 

The City responded to the Notice of Preparation issued by the County at the beginning of 2010.  

This letter indicated that infrastructure and traffic impacts within the City of Ferndale, among 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 33 

other things, should be fully analyzed in the EIR.  Since that time, the “project,” as we 

understand it, appears to have changed.  The preferred route is likely to be Mattole Road rather 

than Monument, and some turbine components may be transported via helicopter lift rather 

than truck, among other changes.  Staff feels that these changes would warrant the Notice of 

Preparation being re-issued, which would give the City another opportunity to provide 

information for the scoping of the EIR.    

PROPOSED CONTENT OF LETTER TO THE COUNTY: The City of Ferndale believes that the NOP/NOI 

Humboldt County circulated on January 19, 2010, for the proposed Bear River Wind Power Project, 

no longer reflects the proposed action and should be re-circulated.  A revised NOP/NOI would allow 

updated comments from responsible agencies, trustee agencies, and interested groups and 

individuals as to the required scope and content of the EIR/EIS to be prepared for the project.  

The project would include elements within the City of Ferndale, including but not necessarily 

limited to road use and repair, resulting in environmental effects within the City.  Therefore, the 

City has a stake in the project and thus is submitting the following comments in response to the 

NOP/NOI.  To consider the environmental effects of the Bear River Wind Power Project, the City 

expands on its earlier request that the EIR/EIS fully address the following: 

(1) Quantitatively evaluate traffic and noise impacts of construction traffic that would utilize roads 
through and around the City of Ferndale.  This includes road trips, estimated at more than 850 
truck trips delivering the turbine components and related equipment to the project site, and 
more than 2,500 trips by dump trucks, water trucks, cranes, and other construction and trade 
vehicles.  Air transport of most of the equipment must be evaluated.  

(2) Describe and evaluate effects of nighttime illumination due to the proposed project.  

(3) Quantitatively analyze construction and operations-related air quality impacts of both project 
construction and operation, including a quantitative analysis of greenhouse gas emissions 
(GHGs) as required by AB 32.  

(4) Analyze environmental effects (traffic, air quality, noise, etc.) of project decommissioning, 
including the impact of the loss of the electricity to be generated by the proposed turbines.  This 
decommissioning would occur after the 30-year terms of the leases, except that two 10-year 
extensions may occur.   

(5) Evaluate the impacts of each of the alternatives to the proposed project on the City of Ferndale 
and compare those impacts to those that would occur under the proposed project. 

(6) Evaluate impacts of the proposed project on property values in the City of Ferndale. 

(7) Evaluate the requirements for and environmental effects of site reclamation.  This step should 
include removal of the turbines, towers, transformers, cabling, and accumulated debris, as well 
as regarding and “ripping” the former road surface to encourage revegetation.  The NOP 
indicates that turbine tower and substation foundations will be removed to a depth agreed 
upon by landowners.  The EIR/EIS must identify the different depths agreed upon in the Shell 
WindEnergy long-term leases with private landowners and evaluate the environmental effects. 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 34 

(8) Evaluate the cost estimates associated with decommissioning to ensure that all aspects have 
been included in the total figure.  Verify that accurate cost forecasts have been used, including 
breakdown and transportation of project materials (for example, turbine towers generally must 
be broken down into sections in order to be sold as scrap metal), site reclamation, and 
necessary road improvements after decommissioning is completed.  

(9) Evaluate the impacts to the environment in the event that SWE cannot pay for project 
decommissioning and site reclamation.   

 
BACKGROUND TO ALTERNATIVE b: The City Council requested that this item be examined 

separately from Alternative c. The following pages contain information regarding Alternative b: 

Opposition to use of Ferndale city streets for the transport of turbine components 

 

BACKGROUND TO ALTERNATIVE c: The City Council requested that this item be examined 
separately from Alternative b. The following pages contain information regarding Alternative c: 
Opposition to the Wind Turbine Project in its entirety. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1/5/12  The following pages have to do with the proposed letter to the County, or Alternative a. 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 35 

 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 36 

                                                                                                                 

 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 37 

1/5/12  The following pages have to do with Alternative b: Opposition to transport of wind turbine 

components through Ferndale… 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 38 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 39 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 40 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 41 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 42 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 43 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 44 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 45 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 46 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 47 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 48 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 49 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 50 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 51 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 52 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 53 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 54 

 

1/5/12 The following pages have to do with alternative c: opposition to the wind turbine project in its 

entirety. 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 55 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 56 

 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 57 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 58 

 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 59 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 60 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 61 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 62 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 63 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 64 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 65 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 66 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 67 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 68 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 69 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 70 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 71 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 72 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 73 

 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 74 

Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11b 

Agenda Item Title: Housing Element Update  

Presented By: George Williamson, Contract City Planner 

Type of Item:  Action  Discussion x Information 

Action Required: x No Action  Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

  

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Send HCD proposed implementation language to Planning Commission for consideration and 
recommendation to the City Council.     
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Draft Housing Element Update has been prepared to comply with the Department of 
Housing and Community Development (HCD) requirements. The Housing Element focuses on 
strategies to preserve and improve housing. A certified Housing Element allows the City to 
apply for various housing program grants (CDBG, HOME, etc.); is an effective way to implement 
regional housing goals; and provides an opportunity to build support for, and review, local 
housing goals. 
 

The Draft Housing Element Update contains the following chapters: 

 Chapter 1 Introduction - provides a summary of the Housing Element Update.   

 Chapter 2 Housing Needs - housing needs were evaluated based on population, 
employment, household characteristics, and existing housing stock. A majority of the 
data came from the U.S. Census Bureau, Department of Finance (DOF), Employment 
Development Department (EDD), and City records.  

 Chapter 3 Resources and Constraints - includes a discussion of Regional Housing Needs 
Allocation, vacant land inventory, and an analysis of governmental and non-
governmental constraints that may be affecting housing opportunities.  

 Chapter 4 Review and Revision of Prior Housing Programs - includes a review of previous 
housing programs and determines what progress has been made in reaching Ferndale 
housing goals.  

 Chapter 5 Housing Goals, Policies and Programs- includes previous, revised, and new 
goals, policies, and programs as applicable, based on analysis in Chapter 4. Quantified 
objectives are identified, which specify the maximum number of housing units that can 
be constructed, rehabilitated, and conserved over a five year period, based on needs, 
resources, and constraints. 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 75 

At the December 1 City Council meeting, Staff reported that a complete Draft Housing Element 

Update was resubmitted to HCD for review in November 2011. Since then, an HCD email was 

received on December 20, 2011 requesting that one last item be revised in the Element, which 

is covered in the following discussion.   

 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
HCD staff has complied with Ferndale’s request to have the revised draft housing element 
review expedited.  To complete state review, HCD requested that one last item in the housing 
element be added in the program to encourage and facilitate small lot development.  (Housing 
Element Program I. Adequate Sites, #7, page 5-5).  The Department recommends adding the 
language below: 
 

Housing Element Program I. Adequate Sites, #7, page 5-5 

 

7) The City will at least annually contact property owners and developers, including affordable 

developers, to encourage development and consolidation on identified target sites (see table 

29) to accommodate the housing needs of lower income households.  To encourage 

development and consolidation on target sites, the City will adopt incentives by September 

30 2012 for consolidation of smaller sites including priority processing, parking reductions, 

modification of development standards and ministerial lot line adjustments.  When available, 

the City will consider providing or assisting with applying for financial resources to facilitate 

lot consolidation.    

 

The draft language has been submitted to HCD for review.  Given the additional 

implementation work that would involved: setting priorities for smaller lot consolidation and 

making annual contact with property owners of lots that could be potentially consolidated, this 

matter should be referred back to the Planning Commission for direction.  This is scheduled for 

January 2012. 

 

Subsequent to Planning Commission review and recommendation, this matter will be returned 

to the City Council for action.  If approved by the City Council, this language will be 

incorporated into the housing element and the City will schedule implementation and develop 

specified incentives accordingly for later in 2012.  When the Element is adopted, it will be 

submitted one last time to HCD for certification.   

 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 76 

Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11c 

Agenda Item Title: Second Reading of Ordinance 2012-01, Amending Zoning Ordinance 

02-02 by adding Section 6.07 Housing Combining Zone Overlay or –H 

Zone. 

Presented By: George Williamson, Contract City Planner 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

  

Mayor Farley  

 Open public hearing;  

 remind people that they have 3 minutes for comments;  

 Council listens to all public comments;  

 Mayor Farley closes public hearing.  

 City Council comments 

 City Council makes a decision. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Second Reading of Ordinance 2012-01, “Amending Zoning Ordinance 02-02 by adding 

Section 6.07 Housing Combining Zone Overlay or –H Zone” by Title Only and direct staff to 

proceed with the proper noticing of the ordinance. 

DISCUSSION: 

Zoning Ordinance Amendment approval will add a Combing Zone overlay covering the existing 

duplex units at the Ferndale Housing project on Fairview Drive and Trident Lane; with a text 

amendment allowing existing duplexes as permitted uses. 

The Ferndale Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the General Plan/ Zoning 

Amendments on October 19, 2011 and the City Council held a public hearing and conducted the 

first adoption reading on December 1, 2011.  A Negative Declaration (SCH# 2011112001) for 

the General Plan/ Zoning Amendments was adopted by City Council December 1, 2011. 

Ferndale Housing Project 

The entire Ferndale Housing project area on Fairview Drive and Trident Lane is zoned 

Residential Single Family (R1).  Therefore, the existing duplex units located within the site are 

an existing non-conforming use. The residential use of the site has not lapsed due to the 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 77 

continued basic maintenance and upkeep. Additionally, the utilities have remained connected 

and operational and the bills have continued to be paid. Because of this, the occupancy and 

non-conforming residential use of the duplex units can continue. However, a Combining Zone 

overlay covering only the existing duplex units would make these units conforming.   

Non-conformity has limitations that could affect the long-term use of the units for intended 

low/moderate income families. Making these existing units conforming with specific overlay 

facilitates the intended use without affecting other areas of the City designated/ zoned R1. (See 

attached figure). 

Amend the Zoning Ordinance as follows: 

6.07 Housing Combining Zone or -H Zone. The H Zone is intended to cover the existing 

duplex units on a portion of the Ferndale Housing Project site located on 

Fairview Drive and Trident Lane. This combining zone principally permits the 

existing duplex units.  

All other applicable provisions remain in effect.   



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 78 

ORDINANCE 2012-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ZONING ORDINANCE 02-02 ADDING SECTION 6.07 HOUSING 
COMBINING ZONE OR –H ZONE. 
 
The City Council of the City of Ferndale does Ordain as Follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1: SHORT TITLE, PURPOSE, and SCOPE 
 
§1.01 This ordinance shall be known and cited as the “Housing Combining Zone Ordinance.” 
§1.02 The purpose of this ordinance is to add Section 6.07 which pertains to Housing 

Combining Zone or –H Zone. 
§1.03 The provisions adopted in this ordinance shall not be exclusive but shall be cumulative 

and complementary to any other provisions of Ferndale City Ordinances and County, 
State and Federal Laws. Nothing in this ordinance shall be read, interpreted or 
construed so as to limit any existing right or power of the City. 

 
ARTICLE 2: STATUTORY AUTHORITY 
 
§2.01 Authority is granted by the California Constitution, Article 11 Local Government, 

Section 7. “A county or city may make and enforce within its limits all local, police, 
sanitary and other ordinances and regulations not in conflict with general laws.” 

§2.02 See Resolution 2011-45 adopting a Negative Declaration (SCH#2011112001) for the 
Housing Element, Historical and Cultural Resources Element, and General Plan/Zoning 
Amendments. 

 
ARTICLE 3: GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
§3.01 The following addition shall be made to Zoning Ordinance 02-02.  

 
6.07 Housing Combining Zone or –H Zone. The –H Zone is intended to 

cover the existing duplex units on a portion of the Ferndale Housing 
Project site located on Fairview Drive and Trident Lane. This 
combining zone principally permits the existing duplex units. 

 
ARTICLE 4: SEVERABILITY:  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of 

this ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the final 
decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such a decision shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

 
ARTICLE 5: EFFECTIVE DATE:  This ordinance becomes effective thirty (30) days after the 

date of its enactment. 
 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 79 

ARTICLE 6: POSTING REQUIREMENT:  The City Clerk shall cause publication of this ordinance 
within 15 days after passage in a newspaper of general circulation published and 
circulated in the city, and posted in at least three public places in the city. 

 
ARTICLE 7: ENACTING DATE AND SIGNATURES:  Passed, approved and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Ferndale at a regular meeting on January 5, 2012 by the 
following vote: (                                    ) 

 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________  ____________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk/City Clerk    Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
 
First Reading: December 1, 2011   
Second Reading: January 5, 2012 
Enacting Date: February 4, 2012 
 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 80 

 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 81 

Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11d 
Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2012-03 for 17th Progress Pay Request for 

Management and Construction Related Costs for the WWTP 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution 2012-03 17th Progress Pay Request for Management and Construction 
Related Costs for the WWTP. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Work on our WWTP began on August 2, 2010 and this is the 17th draw down from the USDA 
loan. The costs associated with this draw down include costs from Wahlund Construction for 
$227,189.36 and $50.00 for Arnie Kemp. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
$227,239.36 from the USDA loan account. 
 

 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 82 

 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 83 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 84 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 85 

RESOLUTION 2012-03 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE 

APPROVES THE SEVENTEENTH PARTIAL PAYMENT REQUEST TO WAHLUND CONSTRUCTION, 

MANHARD CONSULTING FOR THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, Wahlund Construction began Work on our Wastewater Treatment Plant on August 2, 2010; 

and  

WHEREAS, Manhard Consulting is supplying Construction Administration for this project; and  

WHEREAS, The City of Ferndale will be processing partial pay requests on a monthly basis, as well as 

periodic individual bills; and  

WHEREAS, The City Council has received the seventeenth partial payment request of $227,189.36 for 

Wahlund and $50.00 for Arnie Kemp. This all falls within the parameters of our WWTP budget. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale hereby approves 

payment of the Seventeenth partial payment request in the amount of $227,189.36  for Wahlund and 

$50.00 for Arnie Kemp. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 5th day of January, 2012 by the following vote:  

AYES:       

NOES:      

ABSENT:    

ABSTAIN:    

                    ____________________ 

                Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

City Clerk / Deputy City Clerk 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 86 

 

Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11e 
Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2012-01 Increase in cost of Health Insurance 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution 2012-01 Increase in cost of Health Insurance 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Our Health Insurance carrier, Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) has raised 
our rates by 9.88%. These additional costs will come from the General Fund. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

$4835.00 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 87 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE 
PROVIDING FOR INCREASED HEALTH INSURANCE COSTS 

 
WHEREAS, last year we changed health insurance companies to Special District Risk 
Management Authority (SDRMA) in order to take advantage of better rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, health insurance and related costs have increased by nine point eighty eight 
percent (9.88 %); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to cover the cost of the health insurance increase as further 
inducement to retain employees. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Ferndale, the 
following: The health insurance cost increase of nine point eighty eight percent (9.88 %) 
will be borne by the City. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on January 5, 2012 by 
the following vote: 
 
Ayes:   
Noes: 
Abstain:  
Absent:  
      _________________________________  
      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
_______________________  
Deputy City Clerk/ City Clerk 
 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 88 

Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11f 
Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2012-04 Annual Events and Parades Street Closures 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 
Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution 2012-04 Annual Events and Parades Street Closures 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
As in the past, staff is requesting that the listed closures be exempt from Section 7.05 of the 

zoning ordinance which requires a use permit for any assemblage of persons and vehicles. 

Instead, the closures require a “Parade or Assembly” Permit, as well as an encroachment 

permit either from CalTrans (for Main Street) or from the City (for any other street closure). 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

None 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 89 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-04 
 

RESOLUTION TO USE MAIN STREET FROM OCEAN AVENUE TO FERNDALE CITY LIMITS  
FOR PARADES, BANNERS AND FESTIVALS FROM JANUARY 1, 2012 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2012; 

TO CLOSE BERDING ST. FROM FERN TO LEWIS ON OCT. 31, 2012 FOR THE HARVEST FESTIVAL AND CHILI COOK-OFF; 
TO CLOSE THE END OF FRANCIS STREET FROM EUGENE STREET SOUTHWEST TO THE END OF FRANCIS ST ON DECEMBER 2, 

2012 FOR THE LIGHTING OF THE CHRISTMAS TREE 
 

WHEREAS, the following parades, festivals and placement of banners will take place in the City of 
Ferndale from January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012: 
 

19 February 2012 Firemen’s Games 

11 March 2012 Annual Foggy Bottoms Milk Run – Foot Race 

TBA April 2012 The California Mille visits Ferndale 

12 May 2012 Annual Bicycle Tour of the Unknown Coast 

27 May 2012 Portuguese Holy Ghost Festa 

28 May 2012 Veteran’s Memorial Day Parade 

28 May 2012 Great Arcata to Ferndale Kinetic Sculpture Race 

2 June 2012 Annual Pet Parade 

4 July 2012 Annual 4th of July Parade and Picnic 

8-9 September 2012 Bargain Lovers’ Weekend 

TBA October 2012 High School Homecoming Parade 

31 October  2012 Annual Harvest Festival and Chili Cook-Off (Close Berding from Fern and Lewis) 

30 November 2012 Hospitality Night 

2 December 2012 Lighting of America’s Tallest Living Christmas Tree (Close end of Francis Street) 

16 December 2012 Christmas Lighted Tractor Parade 
 

WHEREAS, it is necessary, in order to install banners, provide traffic control and to accommodate the 
crowd and participants during the stated events, to alter vehicular movement and/or close portions of 
Main Street; Berding Street between Fern and Lewis; and Francis Street from Eugene Street southwest 
to the end of Francis Street and, 
 

WHEREAS, the above closures shall be exempt from the City of Ferndale Use Permit Application as 
currently required in the Zoning Ordinance. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of Ferndale that Main Street, Berding 
Street and Francis Street be closed as stated in the attachment, and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Chief of Police is hereby empowered and instructed to enforce this 
Resolution, and that this Resolution shall not be effective, with respect to the State of California, 
Department of Transportation, without prior approval, in writing, from the Department of 
Transportation when and to the extent required by the vehicle code of the State of California. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on January 5, 2012 by the following 
vote: 
 

Ayes:  
Noes:    
Absent: 
Abstain:      ______________________________ 
Attest:       Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
________________________ 
City Clerk / Deputy City Clerk 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 90 

ATTACHMENT 2012 

 February 19: Firemen's Games. Ferndale's volunteer firemen compete in old fashioned firefighting 
techniques: bucket brigade, quick dressing, hose coupling. Main Street, noon to 3 p.m. 

 March 11: 35th Annual Foggy Bottoms Milk Run. Main Street from Ocean and Main to Main and City 
Limits starts at Noon. 

 April TBA: The California Mille visits Ferndale. America’s salute to Italy’s famed Mille Miglia 
(thousand mile) race, stops for lunch in Ferndale at about 11:45 AM for a free Main Street car show, 
which will also spotlight local collectors and their cars. 

 May 12: 34th Annual Bicycle Tour of the Unknown Coast. Events for the whole family! 10-, 20-, and 
50-mile courses plus California's toughest "century," the 100-mile loop through the redwoods, 
tracing the Lost Coast to the Victorian Village of Ferndale. Start times: 100-mile, 7 a.m.; 50-mile, 8 
a.m.; 20-mile, 10 a.m.; 10-mile, 11:30 a.m. 

 May 27: 88th Annual Portuguese Holy Ghost Festa. Sunday Parade on Main Street from the 
intersection of Ocean and Main to the intersection of Washington and Main during the period of 
9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.  The parade time will be two 20 minute periods.  

 May 28: Memorial Day Parade. Ferndale veterans and other organizations coordinate the 10 a.m. 
parade on Main Street from the Veterans Building on Main Street to the intersection of Ocean and 
Main. 

 May 28: 44th Annual Kinetic Sculpture Race finish line in the Victorian Village of Ferndale (finishing any 
time after noon Monday) 

 June 2: Pet Parade. Children 12 and younger parade costumed pets down Main Street to Firemen's Park 
for prizes at 10:30 a.m. 

 July 4: Annual 4TH of July Parade close Main Street from Ocean Ave to Arlington during the period of 12 
noon to 2 p.m. 

 September 8-9: Bargain Lovers' Weekend. Close Francis Street from Main Street to U.S. Bank ATM 
driveway from 8 a.m. to 6 p.m.  

 October TBA: Ferndale High School Homecoming. Parade starts at 9 a.m. The exact date will be 
determined at a later date.  Parade to be from the intersection of Arlington and Main to the 
intersection of Ocean and Main.  The parade time will be approximately 20 minutes. 

 October 31: St. Mark's Annual Harvest Festival and Chili Cook-Off. 5:30-8:30 p.m. St. Mark's, Berding 
Street closed from Fern to Lewis. 

 November 30: Hospitality Night Open House. Close the portion of Francis Street from Main Street to 
the U.S. Bank ATM driveway. 6 to 9 pm 

 December 2: Lighting of America's Tallest Living Christmas Tree. Close S.W. end of Francis Street at 
5:30pm. 

 December 16: 20th Annual Christmas Lighted Tractor Parade.  Parade will be from the intersection of 
Ocean and Main to the intersection of Lewis and Main from 7pm 

 

  

http://www.tuccycle.org/
http://kineticgrandchampionship.com/


January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 91 

Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11g 
Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2012-05 Sousa Agreement to Accept Water 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 
Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution 2012-05 Sousa Agreement to Accept Water. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Having a long term agreement with the land owner close to our new wastewater facility is very 
important to the city. In conversations with RWQCB, it has been stressed that the City needs to 
have a long term commitment from the property owner for agricultural uses. We have had an 
agreement with Elias Sousa for the last five years, and he has agreed to a fifteen year extension 
of the present contract. This would move our present contract through the year 2036. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

$2700 annually.  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 92 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE 
ADOPTING THE AGREEMENT TO ACCEPT WATER WITH ELIAS SOUSA (RECEIVER) 

FOR THE IRRIGATION DISPOSAL OF TREATED EFFLUENT 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Ferndale owns and operates a Wastewater Treatment Plant (herein 
Plant) which consists of an aeration tank with 2 clarifiers and digesters and an 
equalization pond for the treatment of sewage on approximately 10 acres of land near 
Elias Sousa’s (RECEIVER) land; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Ferndale is required by the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control 
Board to dispose of treated effluent by methods other than disposal in Francis Creek between 
May 15 and September 30 which may include the use of treated effluent to provide irrigation to 
agricultural lands; and 
 
WHEREAS, RECEIVER owns agricultural lands adjoining FERNDALE’S Waste Water Treatment 
Facility that require irrigation for full production; and 
 
WHEREAS, The parties hereto will be mutually benefited by entering into this Agreement 
whereby FERNDALE will provide to RECEIVER and RECEIVER will accept from FERNDALE, treated 
wastewater from the Waste Water Treatment Facility during the term of the agreement year 
round, as long as the Reclamation Requirements as specified in the FERNDALE NPDES permit 
are being met. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Ferndale that the 
Agreement to Accept Water, attached hereto and made part hereof, is approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED  that the Mayor of Ferndale is hereby authorized to sign the 
agreement. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on January 5, 2012 by 
the following vote: 
 
Ayes:   
Noes: 
Abstain:  
Absent:  
      _________________________________  
      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
Attest: 
_______________________  
Deputy City Clerk/ City Clerk 
  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 93 

Recording Requested by: 
 
The City of Ferndale 
 
Return to: 
 
City of Ferndale 
P.O. Box 1095 
Ferndale CA 95536 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
 

 

 

 

AGREEMENT TO ACCEPT WATER 

Assessor’s Parcel Numbers: 
 
100-231-002 
100-162-006 
100-162-007 
100-162-018 
100-162-028 

Property Owners of Record: 
 
Elias Sousa 
241 Meridian Road 
Ferndale CA 95536 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of ____________________________________________, 

by and between the CITY OF FERNDALE, a Municipal Corporation, herein referred to as FERNDALE, and 

ELIAS SOUSA, herein referred to as RECEIVER. 

WITNESSETH: 

FERNDALE owns and operates a Wastewater Treatment Plant (herein Plant) which consists of an 

aeration tank with 2 clarifiers and digesters and an equalization pond for the treatment of sewage on 

approximately 10 acres of land near the RECEIVER’S land; and 

FERNDALE is required by the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board to dispose of treated 

effluent by methods other than disposal in Francis Creek between May 15 and September 30 which may 

include the use of treated effluent to provide irrigation to agricultural lands. RECEIVER owns agricultural 

lands adjoining FERNDALE’S Waste Water Treatment Facility that require irrigation for full production. 

The parties hereto will be mutually benefited by entering into this Agreement whereby FERNDALE will 

provide to RECEIVER and RECEIVER will accept from FERNDALE, treated wastewater from the Waste 

Water Treatment Facility during the term of the agreement year round, as long as the Reclamation 

Requirements as specified in the FERNDALE NPDES permit are being met. (See Exhibit “A” attached 

hereto for a list of the specifications). 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 94 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. FERNDALE will, without cost to RECEIVER lay and maintain a pipe line from the Plant to a point 

on the boundary of the RECEIVER’S property as shown on Exhibit “B,” attached hereto. 

2. RECEIVER agrees to accept water discharged from the Plant for land use by irrigation in 

accordance with the terms and conditions of FERNDALE’S most recent National Pollution 

Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit, during the term of this Agreement. FERNDALE 

shall be responsible for checking the conditions and terms of the NPDES permit each year and 

ensure they are complied with. FERNDALE will operate the pump, own and maintain all 

necessary irrigation lines and equipment and control the irrigation process in consultation with 

the property owner or his/her designee. 

3. RECEIVER will not prohibit the discharge of treated effluent. 

4. RECEIVER agrees that the water shall be used for irrigation only on fields where the livestock 

feed will be chopped and removed from the field before being fed to dairy cattle and that no 

dairy cattle will be pastured directly on fields irrigated with treated effluent. 

5. The term of the Agreement shall be for 25 years. Parties agree that the RECEIVER and 

FERNDALE’S representative shall meet annually or more frequently as requested by either party 

to discuss any operation issues as the need arises. Either party may cancel this agreement by 

providing 12 (twelve) months written notice. Said notice shall be delivered by US Postal Service 

to the parties as shown herein:  

 

RECEIVER 
Elias Sousa 
241 Meridian Rd. 
Ferndale, CA 95536 

FERNDALE 
City of Ferndale 
P.O. Box 1095 
Ferndale, CA 95536 

 

6. FERNDALE agrees that all water pumped from the Plant shall comply with US public health 

standards regarding the use of reclaimed wastewater for the purpose intended by this 

Agreement. 

7. FERNDALE agrees to hold RECEIVER, and RECEIVER agrees to hold FERNDALE, free and harmless 

from any liability for injury to persons and property arising out of this Agreement. 

8. FERNDALE reserves the right to take water from the Plant at any time to be used for other 

projects.  

9. RECEIVER grants to FERNDALE such easements for access, maintenance, testing and other such 

activities as may be necessary for FERNDALE’S duties under this Agreement. 

10. During the life of this Agreement, RECEIVER shall maintain in full force and insurance 

conforming to the following minimum requirements: Comprehensive General Liability with a 

minimum limit of $2,000,000.00 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 

injury and property damage. 

11. FERNDALE and its officers, officials, employees and volunteers, as parties entitled to 

indemnification, are to be covered as insured as respects liability arising out of activities 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 95 

performed by or on behalf of FERNDALE or RECEIVER. The coverage shall contain no special 

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to said persons as additional insured. 

12. FERNDALE shall pay to RECEIVER the sum of $2,700.00 annually for the disposal of effluent on 

the property. Payment shall be made no later than October 31 of each year after effluent has 

been disposed of.  

13. In the event of any dispute or controversy arising out of this Agreement, the parties hereto 

agree to submit the matter to the jurisdiction of the American Arbitration Association, with each 

party to bear its own fees and costs. The parties hereto agree to waive their rights to trail by 

jury. 

This Agreement is the full and complete agreement of terms and shall be binding upon the grantees, 

assignors, successors and heirs of each of the parties hereto. 

RECEIVER 
 

 FERNDALE 
 

   

Signature 
 

 Signature 

   

Print Name 
 

 Print Name 

   

Date  Date 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 96 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Reclamation / Recycling Requirements: The Discharger shall comply with applicable state and local 

requirements regarding the production and use of reclaimed wastewater, including requirements of 

California Water Code (Water Code) sections 13500 – 13577 (Water Reclamation) and Department of 

Health Services (DHS) regulations at title 22, sections 60301 – 60357 of the Cal. Code of Regs (Water 

Recycling Criteria). 

a. The use of recycled water shall not create a condition of pollution or nuisance as defined in 

Water Code section 13050(m). 

 

b. Recycled water and airborne spray shall not be allowed to escape from the authorized recycled 

water use area(s). 

 

c. Direct or windblown spray, mist, or runoff from irrigation areas shall not enter dwellings, 

designated outdoor eating areas, or food handling facilities. 

 

d. Disinfected secondary treated recycled water shall not be irrigated within 100 feet of any 

domestic water supply well or domestic water supply surface intake, unless the technical 

requirements specified in title 22, Cal. Code of Regs., section 60310(a) have been met and 

approved by DHS. 

 

e. All areas where recycled water is used that are accessible to the public shall be posted with signs 

that are visible to the public, in a size no less than 4 inches high by 8 inches wide, and that 

include the following wording: ‘RECYCLED WATER – DO NOT DRINK’. Each sign shall display an 

international symbol similar to that shown in title 22, Cal. Code of Regs, Figure 60310-A. These 

warning signs shall be posted at least every 500 feet with a minimum of a sign at each corner 

and access road. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 97 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 98 

Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11h 
Agenda Item Title: Approve Annual Budget Audit for 2010-11 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 
Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Approve the City of Ferndale Annual Budget Audit for 2010-2011 

DISCUSSION:   

The Certified Public Accountant firm of Aycock and Edgmon did an independent audit report on the 

City’s Financial Statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. This audit is performed each year. 

After the adoption of the audited Financial Statements, the statements are sent to agencies as required. 

The current agencies that require the statements are the State of California, PARSAC, and the loan 

agencies from which the City currently has outstanding loans. 

In conversations with our Auditor, draft copies of our Audit are available at City Hall and will be provided 

at the study session. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:    

None 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 99 

Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11i 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2012-02: Recognizing a $14, 415.00 grant from a local 
non-profit organization for upgrades and renovation to the Ferndale 
Police Department. 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Resolution 2012-02 Recognizing a $14, 415.00 grant from a local non-profit organization for 

upgrades and renovation to the Ferndale Police Department.   

DISCUSSION 

The physical structure that houses the City of Ferndale’s Police Department is located at 600 Berding 

Street.   The Department’s roof and interior flooring are in dire need of repair.  The Department has 

experienced water damage due to several leaks.  The flooring within the Department is stained and 

odiferous. 

Additionally, we requested and received bids to remodel the front lobby/counter area of the police 

department in order to make it more accessible to the public. 

In order to maintain a viable structure for many years to come, we received estimates/bids on the 

aforementioned projects.  We requested a grant from a local non-profit organization for the upgrades 

and repairs.  The non-profit organization provided the City of Ferndale Police Department with a 

generous grant of $14,415.00.  Staff requests this grant be used to reimburse the Building and Supplies 

line item to pay for the projects. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

An increase of $14,415.00 to the Police Special Services Revenue Account (10084291) and a 

corresponding increase of $14,415.00 to the Building and Grounds Maintenance Expenditure line item 

(10215020). 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 100 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE 
RECOGNIZING A 414,415 GRANT FROM A LOCAL NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION FOR UPGRADES 

AND RENOVATION TO THE FERNDALE POLICE DEPARTMENT BUILDING 
 
WHEREAS, The physical structure that houses the City of Ferndale’s Police Department is 
located at 600 Berding Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Department’s roof and interior flooring are in dire need of repair; the 
Department has experienced water damage due to several leaks; and 
 
WHEREAS, The flooring within the Department is stained and odiferous; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff requested and received bids to remodel the front lobby/counter area of the 
police department in order to make it more accessible to the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, In order to maintain a viable structure for many years to come, staff received 
estimates/bids on the aforementioned projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff requested and received a generous grant from a local non-profit organization 
for the upgrades and repairs. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Ferndale, that we hereby 
recognize a $14,415.00 grant from a local non-profit organization for upgrades and renovation 
to the Ferndale Police Department.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that an increase of $14,415.00 to the Police Special Services Revenue 
Account (10084291) and a corresponding increase of $14,415.00 to the Building and Grounds 
Maintenance Expenditure line item (10215020) be accepted. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on January 5, 2012 by 
the following vote: 
 
Ayes:   
Noes: 
Abstain:  
Absent:  
      _________________________________  
      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
_______________________  
Deputy City Clerk/ City Clerk 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 101 

 

Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11j 

Agenda Item Title: Request for Proposals for Legal Services 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Direct Staff to place a Request for Proposals for Legal Services. 

DISCUSSION:   

Our City Attorney, David Martinek, is retiring. Per Ferndale’s Purchasing Ordinance, we are directed to 

request proposals from at least three different firms.  

FERNDALE PURCHASING ORDINANCE 07-04 
 
ARTICLE 7: PURCHASING OF SERVICES   
 

§7.01 When the City Council or City Manager, or in his absence the Mayor, authorizes the hiring of 
services for which standard specific actions cannot be drawn due to the nature of the service 
or because of national association by-laws or professional policies prohibiting competitive 
bidding, such as, but not limited to, architectural services, consultant services, legal services, 
and engineering services, the Purchasing Officer shall negotiate for the authorized service.  
7.01.1 Proposals shall be submitted whenever practicable from at least three firms. When 

the service lends itself to written standard specifications, then bidding for this 
service shall be conducted pursuant to Section 3 of this ordinance.  

7.01.2 When the value of any service is greater than one thousand dollars, the contract or 
purchase order shall not be executed unless approved by the City Council. 

§7.02 Lowest responsible bidder. The lowest responsible bidder shall be the bidder who offers to 
perform the work involved according to the plans and specification therefore for the least 
amount of money, provided the bidder has the ability, capacity and, where necessary, the 
required state or other license. 
7.02.1 Purchase of supplies or services may be made from other than the lowest bidder 

when delivery or performance of services are time critical to the needs of the City. It 
is the responsibility of the Purchasing Officer to document the file and notify the 
City Council of the reason for the award to other than the lowest bidder. 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:    

Unknown  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 102 

Meeting Date: January 5, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11k 
Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2012-06 Establishing the City Council meeting schedule 

from February 2012 through January 2013 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution 2011-06 Establishing the City Council meeting schedule from February 2012 
through January 2013. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The city must confirm each year in a resolution its meeting schedule. The City Council of the 

City of Ferndale desires to continue the meetings on the first Thursday of the month at 7 p.m., 

located at City Hall, 834 Main Street, Ferndale.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 103 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE ESTABLISHING THE MEETING 
SCHEDULE FOR THE FERNDALE CITY COUNCIL FOR FEBRUARY 2012 

THROUGH JANUARY 2013 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 06-03 establishes that the meeting schedule of the City Council shall 
be set by resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Ferndale desires to continue the meetings on the 
first Thursday of the month at 7 p.m., located at City Hall, 834 Main Street, Ferndale; and 
 
WHEREAS, If the first Thursday falls on a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held on the 
next business day, Monday, per Government Code 36808/GC 54954 at the same hour; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Ferndale desires to adopt a meeting schedule.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Ferndale City Council, that the City Council 
shall meet on the following dates: 
 
Thursday, February 2, 2012 
Thursday, March 1, 2012 
Thursday, April 5, 2012 
Thursday, May 3, 2012 
Thursday, June 7, 2012 
Thursday July 5, 2012 
 

Thursday, August 2, 2012 
Thursday, September 6, 2012 
Thursday, October 4, 2012 
Thursday, November 1, 2012 
Thursday, December 6, 2012 
Thursday, January 3, 2013 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on January 5, 2012, by 
the following vote: 
 
Ayes:   
Noes:  
Abstain:  
Absent:   
      _________________________________  
      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
___________________________  
City Clerk / Deputy City Clerk 
  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 104 

Section 12 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 

 
Correspondence Files are available for review at City Hall during 
regular business hours, Monday through Thursday, 9am to 4pm. 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 105 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 106 

From: Judith A. Warren [mailto:Judith.Warren@humboldt.edu]  

Sent: Tuesday, December 27, 2011 10:09 AM 

To: Jay Parrish 

Subject: New Training Institute at HSU 

Jay, I am contacting you to let you know about a new training institute that Linda Nellist (who 

now has retired from Red Cross) and I have created at Humboldt State.  We felt you might like to 

be aware of it and of the community disaster preparedness courses we are offering to the public 

in light of your position as City Manager. 

The Regional Training Institute -- Community Disaster Preparedness will be offering two types 

of courses to the public:  the multi-day Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) training, 

and shorter disaster preparedness classes on specific subjects such as how to eat nutritiously 

during times of disaster, what to include in disaster kits, and my Living on Shaky Ground classes 

that are funded by the California Emergency Management Agency. 

I would like to get on your calendar to discuss the classes the Institute offers in light of your 

needs to ensure that Ferndale fares as well as possible in times of disaster, whether it is a 

relatively minor disaster or "the Big One" when we have the anticipated magnitude ~9 Cascadia 

Subduction Zone earthquake that may last five minutes. 

To give you an idea of our classes, I have attached two PDF documents that describe the Institute 

and our CERT training.  The Regional Training Institute's website is at www.humboldt.edu/rti . 

I look forward to hearing from you. 

 

Judy Warren 

Regional Coordinator 

Regional Training Institute -- Community Disaster Preparedness 

Office of Extended Education 

Humboldt State University 

(707) 499-0754 or 445-8008 (home office) 

  

http://www.humboldt.edu/rti


January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 107 

 

 
  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 108 

 

 

Section 13 

REPORTS 
 

Section 13a:  City Manager Staff Report 
CITY MANAGER: 
 
Meetings:  
 

 Kiwanis meeting 1st and 3rd Tuesday of the month at 4:30 pm 

 City Council- Dec 1st - 5:30-9:00 pm (Parsac board meeting in Sac) 

 SRWC meeting- Dec 13th- 2:00-4:00 pm 

 City Manager meeting- Dec 15th -  3:00-5:00 pm 

 RCEA  Board meeting – Dec 19th 3:15- 5:00 pm cancelled 

 Sign Committee meeting-  

 Green Waste program started and over 20% taking advantage of service. 

 Daily conversations and weekly meeting on WWTF progress with Manhard project manager. 

 Daily meetings with chief regarding police activities. 

 Daily interaction with Staff regarding daily workload. We continue to adjust organizationally to most 
efficiently complete a very diverse workload.   

 Met with construction manager, Wahlund construction representative and USDA representative, to 
go over monthly pay request. Also went over construction progress and possible change orders. We 
are putting the finishing touches on the wastewater facility and working on the wetland site. We are 
down to the last few items. 

 Continuing discussions with Fresnel lens committee members. We turned our proposal over to a 
local non-profit who will vote on funding in February. If funding is approved we will resend our 
proposal to Coast Guard asking for their approval to move lens from County Fair grounds to the 
Ferndale Museum. We have been in contact with the CG representatives and congressional 
representatives informing them of our ongoing efforts. 

 Numerous conversations regarding Salt River Project with Watershed Council members, NRC 
representatives, council members and citizens. We continue work with property owners in effort to 
get support for project. Hope to have work start this spring. The project remains very important to 
the City because of the location next to our wastewater facility and the health of Francis Creek and 
our whole drainage system. It should be noted that without all the property owners signing on to 
the project we will not be able to move forward. There are only a few property owners who have 
not signed. 

 Numerous meetings with individual councilmen and the mayor regarding City issues.  

 The EECBG grant construction is almost finished and the City should be receiving reimbursement 
soon. Jack Lakin sent an e-mail thanking everyone involved and that the lighting projects make a big 
difference in both schools. 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 109 

 Daily meetings with Public Works in morning to go over daily activities. We are still waiting for an 
agreement from Martinek with the Silva regarding our access to Russ Park off Eugene Street, 
although he said that he will finish it before he leaves. The fence at firemen’s park continues and 
most of the cement work is completed. Remember that the old fence was put up and paid for by the 
City and this one is being paid for by neighboring property owner. 

 Sculpture in City Green looks great, and we have received many complements. 

 Daily discussions and updates on City Council agenda items and city issues with Treasurer and 
administrative assistant, and Clerk. Most of our time related to reviewing past procedures to make 
sure that everyone is aware of what needs to be done and which one of us is taking care of it. We 
continue to improve the interaction between design review, planning department and office 
personnel. 

  The Sign Ordinance Committee is making good progress. The current ordinance and procedures are 
still in effect and businesses must still go through design review and procedures for placement of 
signs and related issues. 

  Discussions with City Planner regarding design review and planning issues.  

 Number of meetings with members of the SRWC regarding the operation and maintenance of the 
Salt River watershed after the project’s completion. This will be the area we focus on in the next few 
months and years. The Board voted to increase the size of the Board at the last meeting in 
anticipation of getting some of the sub committees up and going and to increase representation of 
the watershed on the board. 

 Communication with Scott Bauer to set up meeting to visit slide on Francis Creek. 

 November 30th and December 1st I attended a strategic planning session and Parsac board meeting 
in Sacramento.  

 Discussions with John Miller and Kirk Girard regarding the Bear River Ridge Turbine project. 

 Many conversations with Finance Director and Auditor going over the annual audit. 

 
CITY CLERK: 
 
Meetings  

 Daily meetings with Office Manager regarding work schedule. 
 
Projects 

 Wrote Ordinance 2011-04 “Change Section 6.05.4(d)(i)(ii) of Zoning Ord 02-02 re majority votes” 

 Wrote Minute Order 2011-08 Approving $2000 for continued Turbidity Threshold Sampling (TTS) 
monitor as approved during November 3, 2011 council meeting. 

 Wrote Minute Order 2011-09 “Adopt the Historical and Cultural Resources Element and approve 
additional work to include a photograph representation from Ferndale of each architectural style 
described in Chapter 3, as recommended by the Planning Commission.” Additional work not to 
exceed $825 and will be completed within 30 days of approval. 

 Prepared Minute Order 2011-10 for July 7, 2011 meeting: “Approve the change order for Miksis 
project replacing the entire line, approximately 250 ft., with high density polyethylene (HDPE) pipe. 
The entire cost of replacing the pipe and making one point repair at the downstream cleanout is 
$14670. There would be a credit of $5000 for the two repairs not completed in the original scope. 
Fiscal Impact would be $9670.” 

 Assisted Deputy City Clerk with Home Occupation Permit. 

 Talked to citizen regarding a childcare business at 71 Francis Street; City Planner informed us that 
State law preempts local zoning controls over licensed Family Day Care homes. If a licensed facility 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 110 

serves eight or fewer children, the law states this is a residential use and therefore, cannot be 
treated any differently than a typical family living situation. This means that the city cannot require 
any special permits, business license, home occupation permit, fire code restrictions, building codes, 
etc. unless such is required of any other family dwelling. Therefore, if a facility is licensed by the 
state, the city must recognize the zoning preemption. Without a state license, the zoning 
preemption is not effective (California Health and Safety Code Section 1597.30-1597.621). 

 Reviewed FPPC and CCCA websites regarding elections. Queried Rio Dell on procedure. 

 Per request from City Manager and citizen researched CEQA procedures and emailed information 
regarding Fresnel Lens. 

 Process mail: open, copies, distribute, file. 

 Assist Deputy City Clerk in phones and counter work. 

 Research account payable and discussed with Finance Manager. Called citizen regarding permit. 
Follow up with City Engineer on approved plan. 

 Talked with Police Chief about bicycle safety in order to respond to Grand Jury Final Report. 

 
 
 
FINANCIAL MANAGER/DEPUTY CITY CLERK: 
 
Meetings 

 City Council Meeting 

 Meeting with City Manager and Deputy City Clerk on various office issues 

 Meeting with City Manager and Deputy City Clerk on Agenda 

 Meeting with vendor in regards to their Statement 

 Meeting with Chief of Police and City Manager on Office Issues 

 Meeting with City Manager and City Clerk on Office Issues 

 Various meetings with City Clerk on Office Duties 

 Phone Call to Cell Phone provider about Phone Issue 

 Meeting with City Manager on Budget 

 Meeting with Docustation  renewal of Copy Machine Contract 
 

Projects 

 Payroll 

 Accounts Payable 

 Accounts Receivable 

 Answer Phones/Greet Visitors 

 Purchase Various Supplies 

 TDA Audit Letter 

 Pedestrian Improvement Letter 

 Receive and File November Financial Reports 

 Research becoming a Notary 

 Gas Exempt Certificate 

 

DEPUTY CITY CLERK: 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 111 

Meetings 

 City Council Meeting- 12/1/2011 

 Special Design Review Meeting- 12/8/2011 

 Sign Committee Meeting- 12/15/2011 

 

Projects 

 Assembled City Council Packet.- 12/1/2011 

 Assembled Special Design Review Packet.- 12/8/2011 

 Assembled Sign Committee Meeting- 12/15/2011 

 Uploaded Council Packet to web. 

 Uploaded Planning Packet to web. 

 Set-up for City Council Meeting Meetings-12/1/2011 

 Set-up for Sign Committee Meeting- 12/15/2011 

 Typed Minutes for City Council Meeting.-12/1/2011 

 Typed Minutes for Special Design Review Meeting.-12/8/2011 

 Typed Minutes for Sign Committee Meeting. -12/15/2011 

 Upload Council Video to computer. 

 Answer Phones/ Messages/Greet Visitors & helping to answer various questions. 

 Home Occupational Permit with assistance of City Clerk and City Planner. 

 Wrote a letter to Kelly Kukuk regarding her Home Occupational Permit. 

 Business Licenses. 

 Coordinated with City Manager and Financial Manager on various office issues 

 Coordinated with City Manager and Financial Manager on Agenda items. 

 Coordinated with Building Inspector on Building Permits. 

 Made Electronic Deposits. 

 Made Cash Deposit 

 Field Observation Complaint forms. 

 Reported Street Light Outage to PG&E. 

 Coordinated with City Planner on temporary banners. 

 Faxed List of all Finalized Building Permits and Sent to Assessor for November. 

 Various Filing. 

 Reservations for the Community Center and City Hall. 

Building and Encroachment Permits Issued 

1221 Rose Re-roof- N. side only 

1385 Lincoln Re-roof garage 

521 Main Remove interior wall covering, sheet- rock, paint, new light fixtures. 

600 Berding Re-roof 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 112 

 

CITY PLANNER: 

Meetings, Planning & Coordination 

 Coordinated with City Manager, City Clerk, and Deputy City Clerk on planning and development 
projects.  

 Responded to questions about the City’s home occupation permit process and requirements. 

 Responded to questions about Zoning Ordinance regulations regarding banners.   

 Researched secondary residential units in A-E zone. 

 Responded to question regarding City process for a home day care facility in an R-1 zone, by 
researching State requirements and reporting results. 

 Prepared staff report for Housing Element Update.  Scheduled for 1/5 CC hearing.  

 Attended 12/1 City Council meeting to present four agenda items. Prior to those items, heard 
agenda item on Bear River Wind Project (BRWP) petitions and concerns of Ferndale residents.  

 Subsequent to 12/1 City Council meeting, discussed County scoping process for BRWP with City 
Manager and options for City to comment on permitting process.  Discussed City actions that could 
be taken, for going on record with County to have City concerns addressed in the BRWP EIR/EIS.  

 Fresnel Lens Relocation & Restoration– Reviewed history and potential next steps as provided by 
community member. Prepared Draft Action Plan Outline to Relocate Fresnel Lighthouse Lens from 
County Fairgrounds to the Ferndale Museum, Restore and Permanently Exhibit.  Researched Coast 
Guard’s Fresnel Lens Policy and Historic Lens Guidelines and incorporated applicable elements into 
Draft Action Plan. 
 

Projects 

 General Plan Update –Historical and Cultural Resources Element (HCRE).  Presented staff report and 
Resolution of Approval prepared for element at 12/1 City Council hearing.  Relayed Planning 
Commission & Design Review Committee recommendation to add graphics/ illustrations of various 
architectural styles to HCRE and received approval for that work.  HCRE unanimously approved by 
City Council. 

 General Plan Update - Housing Element Update – Presented staff report and certification review 
status at 12/1 City Council hearing. Revised Draft Housing Element to reflect CC adoption of 
increased R2 density change.  Had conversation with Dept. of Housing and Community Development 
(HCD) staff asking for verification of City Council Actions on density increase and Ferndale Housing 
occupancy schedule. Completed final draft for City Council adoption and submitted redline/strikeout 
version to HCD as part of certification review. Applied for expedited processing. Started preparation 
of staff report for 1/5 CC hearing. Assisted with public notice preparation.   

 General Plan & Zoning Amendments (GP/ ZA) - Presented staff report and Resolution of Approval 
prepared for increased density in R2 designation (14 to 15 du/ac) and  zoning overlay allowing 
duplex units in Ferndale Housing project as permitted uses. Amendments unanimously approved by 
City Council. 

 California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) compliance - Presented staff report and Resolution of 
Approval prepared for CEQA Negative Declaration on HCRE, Housing Element Update, and GP/ ZA 
for R2 density change and H- Combining Zone at 12/1 City Council meeting. Consolidated CEQA 
review of four discretionary actions as cost saving measure. 

 CEQA Fee waiver - Submitted No Effect Determination (NED) Fee Waiver to the Department of Fish 
and Game (DFG). Initiated conversations with DFG staff asserting that Housing Element Update has 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 113 

no potential effect on fish, wildlife or habitat, despite the fact that NED’s are usually not granted for 
Housing Element Updates.  DFG Issued fee waiver, saving the City $ 2,044.00 in filing fees. Prepared 
Notice of Determination (NOD); filed with County Clerk and State Clearinghouse and sent copy to 
Bear River and Wiyot Tribes to maintain government to government coordination.   

CITY ENGINEER: 

Sewer Projects:  – 
o New Sewer Manholes Located in Main Street with Cleanouts at various locations  

 Work is Complete 
 Final Billing in Progress 

Pedestrian Improvement Project –  
o Project Award and Notice to Proceed has been Issued to Sierra National Construction. 
o Work to Begin Jan 3, 2012 with a target completion date of Feb 22, 2012 
o Kent Hanford will be the Resident Engineer for Construction Support. 

Applications –  

o Waiting to Final Hamper/Matt Pidgeon Project Inspection 
General Engineering –  

o HCAOG  
 City of Ferndale was granted the opportunity to apply for  $250,000.00 from the State 

TE fund for pedestrian improvements (Phase II). 
 Caltrans Headquarters Approved the application as a TE eligible project 
 Waiting for Funding Approval by CTC (Vote in March or April) 

 

o Working on a proposed capital improvement report (roads and drainage) 
 Prepare Project Study Report for resurfacing Berding Street 
 Prepare scope, exhibit, preliminary cost estimates and priority for roads/street projects 
 Prepare scope, exhibit, preliminary cost estimates and priority for drainage projects 

o WWTF Construction Permit Compliance – Performed water sampling for Storm water 
Pollution and Prevention Plan   

o ARRA reporting for Pedestrian Improvement Project 
o Review opportunities for new transportation projects funded by State or Federal sources 
o Research and correspondence with City and County staff regarding Francis Creek sediment 

deposition and dredging. 
Meetings and Committees –  

o No meetings 
Reporting and Correspondence –  

o Prepared monthly staff report 
o General correspondence and meetings with City Staff  

 

 
WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 
 
 DCI has completed the manhole installation project on Main Street and Cleveland. Still waiting for 

the final cost for the credits for the manholes that weren’t needed. 

 Staff continued to receive new inventory for the lab. 

 CPO attended monthly CWEA board meeting in Eureka 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 114 

 Staff discussed pumping strategy for emptying the lagoon through the facilities. New valve was 
installed from the lagoon that staff was able to monitor and control from the SCADA system which 
made draining more efficient and lessened the impact on the treatment process. 

 Staff has worked out a plan with ERD to pick up dewatered sludge on site on a weekly basis. Two 2-
yd dumpsters are used to collect dewatered sludge. Staff was unclear of the volume that would be 
produced prior to startup and only had engineering specs from other facilities. It was found in 
actuality after dewatering that taking it to ERD and being charged by the ton was going to be 
exceedingly expensive and difficult to budget for since volumes and consistency of the sludge could 
change from week to week. The current plan allows us to waste once a week for a flat rate each 
month.  

 Staff discuss punch list with Kent Hanford 

 USA locate at 1100 Main St.  & 305 Lincoln 

 CPO worked on designing new Wonderware® screens for SCADA. 

 Staff responded to sewer trouble call at the Ivanhoe 

 CPO spent time researching the information that is needed in order to sell old standby generator. 
Working with Humboldt County Air Quality. 

 Dealt with sewer tax issues updating the current rolls and taking inventory of new hookups that 
need to be charged. 

 Received preliminary draft GIS maps from HSU for our sewer collection system. In the process of 
making minor changes and additions before the finished product is delivered. 

 Monthly eSMR was submitted 

 Staff performed routine process tests in new lab.  

 CPO refined the design of the operation forms applicable to new process. 

 CPO worked on letter to Regional Board requesting to rescind the City’s CDO. This was done in 
conjunction with the notification that the facility process is complete and we now have 90 days to 
gain compliance under the new parameters of the current NPDES permit. This letter, signed by the 
City Manager was sent and notification of receipt was received from the Regional Board. Their 
intention is to get us on the March or April agenda. 

 CPO discussed paving of the facility grounds with Kent Hanford 

 Discussed option of taking septic dumps from Wyckoff’s. CPO contacted Aeromod via email and they 
advised that relative small amounts of septic sludge would not hurt the treatment process. They 
suggested testing the organic loading (BOD) periodically to make sure it’s within the parameters of 
the plant design. Wyckoff has been taking their septic dumps to Redway and they were looking for a 
dump closer to their service area. This is projected to generate $20,000-$30,000 annually in 
revenue. If it works out on trial basis the City would consider taking septic from other companies as 
well. 

 Prepared monthly sample containers 

 CPO worked with City Manager on Sousa Agreement for accepting irrigation. 

 CPO submitted completion report to Regional Board regarding Compliance Project R1-2009-0102. 
This project was in relation to the City’s violations for TSS removal percentage. The City was able to 
offset 90% of the fines related to these violations by installing the Disc filter at the facility and show 
that is effective in fixing the problems that caused the violations. 

 Cummins rep in for more training and to test generator for auto restart as well as to set up weekly 
exercise program for the generator. 

 Backflow device tested and passed at City Hall  

 Filled out POs for monthly invoices 

 CPO attended monthly meeting with Debbie Coggins, USDA 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 115 

 Inspection at 58 Ocean Avenue with City Building Inspector regarding additional EDUs. 

 Chlorine and Sulfur Dioxide disinfection and dechlorination system taken off line with respect to the 
UV system last month. All the equipment remains in place and will be used as a backup. The bulk of 
the chemical cylinders were returned and we have on hand only what may be needed in the case of 
an emergency if the UV system should malfunction. This is highly unlikely but precautionary 
measures are good to plan for. 

 Monthly samples picked up by NCL 

 Received 3 septic dumps from Wyckoff’s totaling 4200 gallons. Our average daily flows are in excess 
of 150,000 gal so this amount is minimal to the overall system flow. 

 Assisted Trojan with pulling data from the memory card on the UV controller so they are able to 
assist in adjusting dose formula. 

 Worked with Portland Engineering on the SCADA system 

 New discharge pipe installed on Belt Press to make disposal more efficient. 

 Investigated “odd” discharge coming from grammar school drainage system into street 

 Performed video inspection at the Ivanhoe. The line had been cleaned and cleared by commercial 
plumbing company. No obstructions were found and the pipe appeared to be in good condition.  

 CPO did a pipe locate at the Cleveland manhole construction site. 

 CPO contacted several companies to ask for RFPs for a new jetter hose reel and high pressure nozzle 
to replace the one that was stolen. Three bids were given and Wyckoff was the low bidder. The 
equipment was ordered and should be here soon. 

 Operator Coppini performed several dewatering events. In December to this point more than 6 tons 
of sludge has been dewatered and disposed of. 

 Miksis Services, Inc. in for collection system maintenance. 

 The first of three annual routine toxicity samples were collected and tests completed. These tests 
measure the ability for specific aquatic species to survive in the receiving water influenced by our 
effluent. Results returned at 95% survival for the water flea and 100% for the rainbow trout. 
Minimum is 70%. 

 CPO reviewed and signed daily operation sheets for WWTF  

 CPO performed the daily operation of WWTP during operator Coppini’s scheduled day off. 

 Operator Coppini performed general maintenance around the facility 

 Operator Coppini filed online SSO report.  

 Operator Coppini performed the normal in-house weekly and monthly testing and scheduled lab 
work to be done. 

 

 

 

 

 

*This includes pumping down the pond. 

          

Nov 2011 Flows Total Average Minimum Maximum 

Influent MGD 10.95 .365 .107 .939 

Effluent MGD* 21.62 .720 .104 1.218 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 116 

PUBLIC WORKS: 

City Property 

 Firemen’s Park 
o Routine Maintenance, i.e. Mowing Park and Baseball Field. 
o Routine daily walk through to pick-up garbage.  
o Mowed the Bocce area and BB Field. 
o Working with contactors regarding the fence at the park and PW on various issues. 
o Removed broken trash can and replaced with a new one. 

 Park Restrooms 
o Routinely cleaned every day of the week including weekends. 

 Russ Park 
o Routine maintenance: Pulling out trash from trash & recycle bins daily. 
o Picked-up loose garbage from Russ Park. 
o Worked on new bike rack and garbage can. 

 Town Hall 
o Routine mowing and weedeating 
o Pull out trash daily 
o Back flow test. 
o Cleaned all the light globs on the street lights around the greens. 
o Hung Christmas lights on all the light poles. 

 Library 
o Routine mowing and weed eating 

 City Parking Lot 
o Picked up garbage – Routinely as least once a week unless otherwise warranted. 
o Hung flags. The flags are being removed at night by unauthorized people. PW tied flag rope to 

the top of the pole so it can’t be tampered with. 

 Main Street Restrooms 
o Routine maintenance: Daily cleaning and stocking of Main Street Restrooms – 7 days a week. 

 Community Center 
o Routine checking of CC when the facility is rented before and after. 
o Showing CC to potential renters as needed 

 Police Department 
o Routine mowing and weed eating 

 Scout Hall - Routine mowing and weedeating  

 Children’s Center – Changed out air filter 

 Roadsides - Routine mowing and weed eating 

 Public Works –  
o Working with Katie from Redwood Coast Energy Authority on greenhouse gas reduction. 
o Cleaned out PW barn and power washed the floor for the Christmas Tree Lighting. 

 
Storm Drains and Sewers 

 Removed debris from all the drains around town.  

 Camera DI at the PW shop for direction of flow. 

 Chemical pick-up for sewer dept. 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 117 

Streets and Sidewalks 

 Routine maintenance: Regular maintenance of roadside mowing. 

 Routine picking up trash at the edge of town. 

 Routine maintenance: Continuing to pick-up piles around town as resident call and request removal. 

 Routine maintenance: Sweep Main St., Monday, Wednesday and Friday mornings. 

 Marked out USA locates throughout town. – When needed. 

 Removing piles. 

 Finished replacing broken signs throughout town. – Ocean @ 5th and @ Fairgrounds. Petrolia, 
Centerville, Honeydew. Pixley @ 5th.  Milton @ Lincoln. Tennyson @ Madison. Main @ Van ness. 
Fairground x Campers. Jacobsen @ Cream Ct. Herbert @ Rose. Main @ Washington. Main @ Lewis. 
Main @ Brown. 

 Set up speaker system for the x-mas tree lighting. 

 Set up speaker systems for the Tractor Parade. Took down the speaker system after parade and 
hauled back to the CC. 

 Added black-top to edge of road at Wildcat. 

 Cleaned out gutters on Ocean Ave. 

 Mowed roadside with the Ford Tractor – 4 hours. 

 Cleaned up after x-mas tree lighting. 

 Cleaned up after Tractor Parade.  

 Cleaned up after Hospitality night. 
 
Vehicle / Equipment Maintenance 

 Routine monthly maintenance and weekly maintenance on frequently used equipment. 

 Serviced JD Mower and Push mower. 
 

Miscellaneous 

 Routine paperwork. 

 Dealing with daily work orders as residents call. 

 Viewed Safety videos. 

 Went to Bay West to pick up supplies. 

 Fire Extinguishers  due for service 

 Larry Glass – broken neutral wire at his home. 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
 Officers Frank and Hynes gave a tour of the police department to the local Cub Scout pack. 

 Officer Lee Haldorson has been proceeding through his Field Training Program on the weekends. 

 The police department received Funding through the Lytel Foundation for new flooring, roof and 
remodel of the front lobby/counter area.  The work has begun.  The renovation of the lobby will 
make it more accessible to the public. 

 Chief Smith attended Kiwanis meetings/functions. 

 Chief Smith attended the monthly LECAH meeting. 

 Chief Smith attended the monthly Community Corrections Partnership Executive Committee 
meetings. 

 Officer Diaz attended the monthly LETMA meeting. 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 118 

 Chief Smith presented several awards to the graduating law enforcement academy at College of the 
Redwoods. 

 Officers provided traffic control for the Christmas tree lighting. 

 Officers provided escort and traffic control for the Lighted Tractor Parade. 

Police Statistics – November 2011 

 

SERIOUS CRIMES Number Cleared 

Homicide 0   

Rape 0   

Robbery 0   

Larceny 0   

Assault 1  1 

Burglary 0   

Vehicle Theft 0  

TOTAL 0 

SECONDARY CRIMES 2 

Calls for Service 52 

Reports Written 11 

Traffic Citations 21 

Other Citations 6 

Parking Citations 1 

Warnings 33 

ARRESTS 4 

AGENCY ASSISTS 14 

TRAFFIC COLLISIONS 1 

 

 
 

  



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 119 

Section 13b: Commissions, Committees and Other 

 
 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 

Special Design Review Minutes for the 11/10/11 8:30am meeting 

 

 Chairman Dan Brown opened the meeting at 8:31. Committee members Dane Cowan, Lino Mogni, 

Michael Sweeney and Michael Bailey were present along with staff Deputy City Clerk Brianna Smith.  

 

No public comment. 

 

427 Main Street: MOTION: (Bailey/Cowan). Approve applicants sign. All in favor. 

 

No committee comments. 

 

The next regular meeting will be on December 22, 2011. The meeting was adjourned at 8:34 am.  

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

Brianna Smith 

Deputy City Clerk 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 120 

  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 

Sign Ordinance Committee Minutes for the 12/15/2011 2:30pm meeting 

 

Chairman Michael Bailey opened the meeting at 2:36 pm. Committee members Michael Sweeney, Karen 

Pingitore, and Phil Ostler were present along with staff City Manager Jay Parrish and Deputy City Clerk 

Brianna Smith. Committee member Trevor Harper was absent. 

 

No public comment. 

 

November 3, 2011 Minutes:  MOTION: Approve minutes as amended. (Pingitore/Sweeney). All in favor. 

 

Background, Purpose and Scope: Discussed were the Background, Purpose, and Scope statements that 

Michael Bailey and Michael Sweeney submitted. The committee all agreed on major edits in the 

Background, Purpose and Scope statements. Michael Bailey and Michael Sweeney will work to resolve 

the differences and bring it back to the committee at the next regular meeting for approval. 

 

The next regular meeting will be January 19 at 2:30 pm. The meeting was adjourned at 4:15pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



January 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 121 

Section 13c: Council Reports and Comments 
ABSTRACT 

HWMA Meeting of the Board of Directors 
December 8, 2011 6:30 p.m. 
Eureka City Council Chambers 
 
A full board was in attendance; Boardmember Brinton returned to service for Arcata with Boardmember Winkler’s 
appointment as Mayor of Arcata. Boardmember McCall-Wallace served as the Blue Lake representative during 
closed session discussion of real property negotiations, from which no reportable action was made. 
 
Boardmember reports focused mostly on Board and Authority activities. Chairman Maxwell thanked Executive 
Director Test and Susan Rigge, Controller, for their respective service, as both are retiring at the end of the year. 
With some corrections and clarifications, the consent calendar passed with minimal discussion. 
 
A major review of strategic planning activities thus far, focusing heavily on the results of the public workshop held 
in November, was the main topic of the night. Staff presented proposed planning for the coming months, while the 
Board and public discussed the lead-in and outcomes of the planning workshop. The makeup of the PAC, as well as 
its position in the Authority hierarchy was discussed, with everyone agreeing that the PAC would report to the 
Board, quieting some worry from Boardmember Thompson that the committee might act independently of the 
Board of Directors. Chairman Maxwell expressed his pleasure at the outcome of the planning workshop, despite 
some issues with the methods of contacting interested parties. Boardmember Brinton was elected to replace 
former Boardmember Winkler as the second member of the Strategic Planning Subcommittee. 
 
Juliette Bohn, Project Manager, discussed a potential interconnection agreement with PG&E to sell power from a 
system she proposes to install at the Cummings Road Landfill. The new technology takes advantage of landfills like 
the CRLF, which no longer accepts waste and has a continually decreasing amount of methane. Mark Springman, 
Landfill Manager, presented some concerns to the Board regarding the technology. Juliette Bohn, in conjunction 
with Gary Joubert of FlexEnergy, responded to many of the concerns by indicating the results of pilot programs, 
new installations, and future orders that indicate the systems have a significant potential for use at the CRLF. The 
interconnection application will confirm whether or not staff and FlexEnergy can move forward with purchase 
negotiations for the technology. The Board received satisfactory answer to the concerns voiced by Mr. Springman 
and authorized staff to continue with the interconnection application. 
 
The Board discussed the hiring of a consultant to assist with work on the food waste digester project. Ms. Bohn 
intends to use the consultant for parts of the project where field experts, utilizing their preexisting tools and 
contacts, will be more efficient at completing tasks than her and her staff would be. She noted the additional 
benefit of having fresh minds looking at her work to provide previously unexplored avenues for furthering the 
success of the project. The consultant recommended by staff, HDR, was further vetted by Boardmember 
Thompson, as the City of Rio Dell has used them in the past, with very satisfactory results. 
 
Executive Director Test reported on reduced e-waste rates being implemented at the Transfer Station, and reports 
from the Regional Water Quality Control Board that suggest that comments on the closure plan, and subsequent 
approval of the plan, may be coming as early as April, meaning that closure construction could potentially begin in 
the summer of 2012. 

 

Section 14 

ADJOURNMENT 


